
November 7th, 2023 - 5:30 P.M. 
LA CRESCENT COMMUNITY BUILDING 

336 SOUTH FIRST STREET 

Agenda 

1. Call To Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

4. Approval of October 30th, 2023 Meeting Minutes

5. Variance application-  PC-23-01-VAR 400 Backstretch Court

6. League of Minnesota Cities Planning Commission Guide(Handout)

7. Adjourn

City of La Crescent 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Notice 

Page 1



Special Planning Commission Meeting – October 30th,  2023    Page 1 

MINUTES, SPECIAL MEETING 
PLANNING COMMISSION, CITY OF LA CRESCENT, MINNESOTA 

OCTOBER 30th, 2023 

The Planning Commission met at 5:30 p.m., on October 30th, 2023 in the City’s Community Building located 
at 336 S. 1st Street. 

Item 1. Call to Order 

Chair Greg Husmann called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  

Item 2. Pledge of Allegiance 

Members recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item 3. Roll Call 

Upon a roll call taken and tallied by Josh Tarrence, Building Inspector, the following members were present: 
Chair Greg Husmann, Vice Chair Mike Welch, Dave Hanifl, Jerry Steffes, Ryan Stotts, and Christopher Langen.  
Member Dave Coleman absent.  Ex-Officio City Council Representative Cherryl Jostad was present.  
Community Development Director Larry Kirch, City Engineer, Tim Hruska of WHKS and City Attorney, Skip 
Wieser were also present. 

Item 4. Approval of the October 3rd, 2023 Planning Commission Minutes 

Commissioner Steffes asked that Jason Ludwigson’s name be attached to the title of Sustainability 
Coordinator in the minutes.  Vice Chair Welch made a motion to accept the minutes from the October 3rd 
meeting with the aforementioned correction. Commissioner Stotts seconded the motion. Upon a roll call vote 
taken and tallied by Josh Tarrence, Building Inspector, the following Members voted in favor thereof, viz; 

Mike Welch  Yes 
Ryan Stotts Yes 
Dave Hanifl Yes 
Greg Husmann Yes 
Chris Langen         Yes 
Jerry Steffes Yes 

and none voted against the same. The motion was declared duly carried. 

Item 5. Public Hearing:  Walnut Street Corridor Plan 

Community Development Director Larry Kirch gave a condensed presentation of the Walnut Street Corridor 

Page 2



Special Planning Commission Meeting – October 30th,  2023 Page 2 

Plan.  He explained, the Economic Development Committee had approved the plan with nine additional 
conditions.  The floor was opened for public comment and questions.  The planning commission was 
addressed by five residents of La Crescent.   

- Greg Fiegen, 414 Park St
- Kortney Kistler, 418 Park St
- Lisa Fiegen, 414 Park St
- Angel Klankowski, 102 N Walnut St
- Jeff Henthorne, 417 Park St

The public hearing was closed after no further public comments or questions were presented.  The planning 
commission discussed the plan and asked any questions they had.  After discussion, a motion was made by 
Commissioner Hanifl to approve the Walnut Street Corridor Plan, with the Economic Development 
Committee’s nine additional conditions, using an alternative route other then Park Street.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Langen.  Upon a roll call vote taken and tallied by Josh Tarrence, Building 
Inspector, the following Members voted in favor thereof, viz; 

Dave Hanifl  Yes 
Chris Langen  Yes 
Ryan Stotts  Yes 
Mike Welch  Yes 
Greg Husmann Yes 
Jerry Steffes  Yes 

and none voted against the same.  The motion was declared duly carried. 

Item 6. Public Hearing:  Active Transportation Corridor Plan for Hwy 16 to Miller’s Corner 

The Planning Commission opened the floor for comments or questions from the public in regards to the 
Active Transportation Corridor Plan.  There were no members of the community present in regards to the 
aforementioned plan.  The public hearing was closed.  Community Development Director Larry Kirch gave a 
condensed presentation about the Active Transportation Corridor Plan from Hwy 16 to Miller’s corner. 
Discussion followed the presentation.  A motion was made by Commissioner Hanifl to approve the Active 
Transportation Corridor Plan as presented.  The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Welch.  Upon a roll call 
vote taken and tallied by Josh Tarrence, Building Inspector, the following Members voted in favor thereof, 
viz; 

Dave Hanifl Yes 
Mike Welch Yes 
Chris Langen Yes 
Greg Husmann Yes 
Ryan Stotts Yes 

Page 3



Special Planning Commission Meeting – October 30th,  2023 Page 3 

Jerry Steffes Yes 

and none voted against the same.  The motion was declared duly carried. 

Item 7. Discussion of various application types to be heard before the Planning Commission and the role 
of Staff and Planning Commission Members. 

City Attorney Skip Wieser addressed the Planning Commission in regards to the various application types 
that could be submitted for their review and action.  Also discussed was the roles and responsibilities of the 
Members of the Planning Commission.   

Item 8. Planning Commission updates from appointed City Council Representative. 

Council Member Cherryl Jostad updated the Planning Commission Members on current items and issues 
being addressed with the City Council. 

Item 9.  Adjourn. 

The Chair noted that the next meeting would be on November 7th, 2023 at 5:30 p.m.  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Stotts to adjourn the meeting.  The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Welch.  Upon a roll 
call vote taken and tallied by Josh Tarrence, Building Inspector, the following Members voted in favor 
thereof, viz; 

Ryan Stotts  Yes 
Mike Welch  Yes 
Greg Husmann Yes 
Chris Langen  Yes 
Jerry Steffes  Yes 
Dave Hanifl  Yes 

and none voted against the same.  The motion was declared duly carried. 

The Planning Commission meeting was adjourned at 7:46 p.m. 

Page 4



City of La Crescent 
Building and Zoning Department 

PLANNING COMMISSION – BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT PUBLIC MEETING 
VARIANCE REQUEST – 400 BACKSTRETCH COURT 

STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: November 7, 2023 

CASE NUMBER: PC-23-01-VAR 400 Backstretch Court - Variance 

OWNER: Jeffery Michael Reget 
616 4th Street N 
La Crescent, MN 55947 

PARCEL ID: 25.2298.000  
Sect-09 Twp-104 Range-004 HORSE TRACK MEADOWS Lot-022 Block-
001  

APPLICANT: Jeffery Michael Reget

REQUEST: A variance to allow for a garage that is 100 percent of the building 
front footage facing a street.  

LOCATION: 400 Backstretch Court 

GENERAL PLAN/ 
ZONING DESIGNATION: Neighborhood Residential / R-1-A Low Density Residential 

SURROUNDING USES: North: Residential; 
South: Residential; 
East:  Residential; 
West: Residential. 

BACKGROUND 

The subject property is Lot 22 of Block 1 of the Horse Track Meadows Subdivision. The property 
is located at the northwest corner of Backstretch Court and Trifecta Avenue.  The zoning code 
specifies that a garage may not exceed 55 percent of the ground floor linear street-facing 
building footage of the house and the applicant is seeking a variance to allow 100 percent of 
the house facing Trifecta Court to be the garage. 

Page 5



2 | P a g e
PC-23-01-VAR – Variance Request 400 Backstretch Court 

PROPOSAL 

The applicant is requesting to construct a home on a corner lot, where the street facing linear 
building frontage for the garage is 100 percent of the street facing linear frontage of the 
residential building.  PC-23-01-VAR is a variance request from the zoning code provisions found 
in Chapter 12, Zoning Ordinance, Section 12.14 R-1A - LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, 
Subd. 6. Special Minimum Requirements. A. Parking Regulations 3. Garage shall not comprise 
more than 55 percent of the ground floor street-facing linear building frontage. This standard is 
based on the measurement of the entire garage structure and not on a measurement of the 
garage door or doors only. 

BUILDING AND ZONING STAFF ANALYSIS 

Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: 

The subject site is designated by the City’s General Plan as “Neighborhood Residential.” The 
Comprehensive Plan states that this land use designation is “intended for City housing on public 
sewer and water with densities that range from three (3) to twelve (12) units per acre. Areas 
classified as NR (most of the City) will be predominately single-family detached units with the 
potential for some duplex, twindominiums, four plex, townhouses and multi-family housing 
(typically < 8 units per structure). 

Housing 

Objectives: 9. Current building and fire codes and the zoning ordinance will be consistently 
enforced. 

Strategies: 11. Maintain and enforce development design guidelines for all housing types that 
will maintain neighborhood character, property values and aesthetics over time and enhance 
the social function, health, and safety of City neighborhoods. Refer to representative images of 
housing design strategies within this plan and zoning code regulations. 

Garages should 
be further from 
the street than 
the front door 

Page 6



3 | P a g e
PC-23-01-VAR – Variance Request 400 Backstretch Court 

City zoning and land use regulations:  The City Zoning Code contains parking regulations in 
Section 12.14 for the Low-Density Residential District and specifies that no garage shall take up 
more than 55 percent of the of the ground floor street-facing linear building frontage.  

Site Context: 

The site is within the recently platted residential subdivision known as Horse Track Meadows. 

Infrastructure Improvements: 

N/A  

Public Input: 

Staff has not received any public comment regarding this application. 

FINDINGS OF FACT FOR VARIANCE REQUEST 

12.07 VARIANCES Subd. 1. Pursuant to Minn. Stat. Sec. 462.357, Subd. 6, as it may be amended 
from time to time, the Planning Commission, acting as a Board of Adjustment, may issue 
variances from the provisions of this zoning code. A variance is a modification or variation of 
the provisions of this zoning code as applied to a specific piece of property. 

CRITERIA FOR GRANTING VARIANCE 

The City Zoning Ordinance states the following: 

A variance is a modification or variation of the provision of this zoning code as applied to 
a specific piece of property. 

Subd. 2. 

A. Variances shall only be permitted

1. when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the
ordinance, and

2. when the variances are consistent with the comprehensive plan.

B. Variances may be granted when the applicant for the variance establishes that
there are practical difficulties in complying with the zoning ordinance.

Subd. 3. “Practical difficulties,” as used in connection with the granting of a variance, 
means that  

1. The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not
permitted by the zoning ordinance;

Page 7



4 | P a g e
PC-23-01-VAR – Variance Request 400 Backstretch Court 

2. The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not
created by the landowner; and

3. The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.

Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical 
difficulties include, but are not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar 
energy systems. The board may impose conditions in the granting of variances. A 
condition must be directly related to and must bear a rough proportionality to the 
impact created by the variance.  DECISIONS. Following the public meeting or any 
continuance which is not appealed by the applicant, the Board of Adjustment shall grant 
or deny the variance upon a decision by a majority of members present. The Board of 
Adjustment may grant variances from the literal provisions of this Ordinance when the 
applicant for the variance establishes that there are practical difficulties as defined 
herein, and when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the 
Ordinance and when the variances are consistent with the comprehensive plan. The 
Board of Adjustment may impose any reasonable condition in granting of such variances 
in order to ensure compliance with this Ordinance or to protect adjacent property. The 
Board of Adjustment may consider functional and aesthetic issues in order to protect 
the essential character of the neighborhood. The Board of Adjustment shall accompany 
its decision to grant or deny a variance with a statement of its findings.  

APPLYING THE VARIANCE CRITERIA 

City staff has reviewed the submitted application, the applicant’s response (a - k) of the 
application, reviewed the adopted comprehensive plan, and the city’s zoning code.  As noted 
above from Subd. 2 A. of the zoning code, “Variances shall not be permitted when they are not 
in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the ordinance and when the variances are 
not consistent with the comprehensive plan.”   

1) There is no specific reference in the comprehensive plan to the maximum or minimum
percentage a garage may take up along a street frontage, the Comprehensive Plan does
specifically note that garages shall not be the dominate architectural feature of a home
facing the street (see above photo and text from the Comprehensive Plan).

2) The comprehensive plan states “Maintain and enforce development design guidelines
for all housing types that will maintain neighborhood character, property values and
aesthetics over time and enhance the social function, health, and safety of City
neighborhoods.”

The staff finds that the variance request is not consistent with the above noted objective and 
strategy of the Comprehensive Plan.  

Staff finds that the variance request is not in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
the zoning ordinance, which is to carry out the intent of the City of La Crescent, Minnesota's 
plans and policies and to promote the public health, safety and general welfare.  The Zoning 

Page 8



5 | P a g e
PC-23-01-VAR – Variance Request 400 Backstretch Court 

Code is very explicit regarding the 55 percent maximum for garage linear street facing building 
frontage.   

Because the request does not meet the two-tail test specified for a variance, the request does 
not need to be analyzed under the “practical difficulties” analysis and should therefore not be 
approved. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

The rationale the applicant is providing for a variance is that they do not want to redesign the 
house.  Formal construction drawings have not been created and the applicant has submitted 
preliminary plans from a lumber company. If one were to analyze the request under the three 
practical difficulties criteria, the request does not meet criteria #2 and #3. 

#2:  The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not created by 
the landowner.   

This property is not unique, it is simply a corner lot.  Four other homes in this subdivision on 
corner lots have complied with this particular provision of the zoning code.  The applicant does 
not provide sufficient rationale to indicate that the variance is justified because the property is 
unique.   

After meeting with the applicant twice and giving the applicant a copy of the specific provision 
of the zoning code that the applicant does not wish to meet, the applicant states: “It is my 
understanding that the current code does not allow for you to have the entrance to your garage 
on a different street than the frontage of your home.”  There is no prohibition in the code that 
prevents garage entrances on another street.  City staff clearly stated that the house design, 
with 100 percent of the house being garage facing Trifecta Avenue was not compliant with the 
zoning code which has a maximum of 55 percent linear street frontage maximum.   

Staff also attempted to illustrate to the applicant that the house floor plan could be flipped and 
have garage doors facing Backstretch Court which would then comply with the ordinance.  Staff 
also suggested the house could have a side entry garage on the west end of the lot which would 
also comply with the zoning ordinance.   

#3: The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. 

The City Board of Adjustment has never approved a variance to allow 100 percent of a garage 
ground floor street facing linear building frontage.  In reviewing previous variance requests for 
this code provision, the maximum is 63 percent.  Two of four previous applicants eventually 
redesigned the home to eliminate the need for the variance.  To allow a 100 percent variance 
would alter the essential character of Horse Track Meadows Subdivision. 

Page 9



6 | P a g e
PC-23-01-VAR – Variance Request 400 Backstretch Court 

RECOMMENDED MOTION FOR VARIANCE 

I move that the Planning Commission serving as the Board of Adjustment (APPROVE/DENY) case 
PC-23-01-VAR – 400 Backstretch Court, a request by Jeffrey Michael Reget to allow for a garage 
to have 100 percent of the ground floor street facing linear building frontage fronting Trifecta 
Avenue rather than the maximum allowable of 55 percent. 

The Planning Commission Statement of Findings (Refer to Exhibit 2): 

1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

5) 

Conditions: 

_Larry Kirch________________________
Prepared by Larry Kirch,  
Community Development Director 

Attachments: 
Exhibit #1 – Houston County Beacon Aerial Map – Parcel Map 
Exhibit #2 – Variance Findings Form 
Exhibit #3 – Application - Variance Request  

Appeal to the City Council 
Pursuant to 12.07 Subd. 11 of the La Crescent Zoning Ordinance, upon approval or denial of a 
variance request by the Board of Adjustment, an applicant or other aggrieved party may file an 
appeal in writing to the City Council within ten (10) days of the decision, otherwise the decision 
by the Board of Adjustment becomes final. 

Page 10



7 | P a g e
PC-23-01-VAR – Variance Request 400 Backstretch Court 

Exhibit #1 
Houston County Beacon Aerial Map – Parcel Map 

Page 11



8 | P a g e
PC-23-01-VAR – Variance Request 400 Backstretch Court 

Exhibit #2 
Variance Findings Form 

1. Is the request in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the ordinance?

The variance is/is not in harmony with the purpose and intent of the zoning ordinance based on the following 
findings of the Planning Commission because:   

2. Would granting the variance be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan?

Granting the variance is/is not consistent with the Comprehensive Plan because:  

Practical Difficulties Analysis 

3. Does the property owner propose to use the property in a reasonable manner not
permitted by the ordinance?

The property owner does/does not propose to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the 
ordinance, given the purpose of the protections because:   

4. Is the plight of the landowner due to circumstances unique to the property owner not
created by the landowner?

There are/are no circumstances unique to the property that would prevent compliance with the ordinance because:  

5. Would granting the variance allow the essential character of the locality to stay the
same?

Granting the variance will/will not alter the essential character of the locality because:  

Page 12



9 | P a g e
PC-23-01-VAR – Variance Request 400 Backstretch Court 

Exhibit #3 
Application - Variance Request 

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



400 BACKSTRETCH COURT 
VARIANCE APPLICATION

CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 11-7-2023

Page 29



WHY A 
VARIANCE IS 

BEING 
REQUESTED 

• Subd. 6. Special Minimum Requirements – Page 38 of

Zoning Ordinance Book

• 2. Side entry garages are encouraged where feasible.

• 3. Garage shall not comprise more than 55 percent of the

ground floor street-facing linear building frontage. This

standard is based on the measurement of the entire

garage structure and not on a measurement of the garage

door or doors only.

• Corner lots are not taken into consideration in the above

Special Minimum Requirements

• Zoning-Ordinance-Book-FINAL-Additions-Adopted-7-11-

2022.pdf (cityoflacrescent-mn.gov)

Page 30

https://www.cityoflacrescent-mn.gov/wp-content/uploads/Zoning-Ordinance-Book-FINAL-Additions-Adopted-7-11-2022.pdf
https://www.cityoflacrescent-mn.gov/wp-content/uploads/Zoning-Ordinance-Book-FINAL-Additions-Adopted-7-11-2022.pdf
https://www.cityoflacrescent-mn.gov/wp-content/uploads/Zoning-Ordinance-Book-FINAL-Additions-Adopted-7-11-2022.pdf
https://www.cityoflacrescent-mn.gov/wp-content/uploads/Zoning-Ordinance-Book-FINAL-Additions-Adopted-7-11-2022.pdf


SITE PLAN – CORNER LOT

Page 31



Page 32



HOUSE DESIGN

• Keeping with aesthetics of

neighborhood

• Logical use of corner lot, driveway

off adjacent road

• Allows for maximum yard

• Optimal patio placement for privacy

• All set backs will be met

• Only non-compliance is garage

placement

Page 33



PROS AND CONS

PROS

• Tax revenue

• Real estate taxes

• La Crescent businesses utilized as much as

possible

• GreenStep City alignment

• Solar planned, new efficient home and

appliances

• Yard space optimized

CONS

• Doesn’t meet current Zoning Ordinance

requirements which don’t account for

corner lots

Page 34



THANK YOU FOR 
YOUR 
CONSIDERATION!

Page 35


	Agenda- November 7th, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting- pdf
	Planning Commission Minutes 10-30-2023
	Item 1. Call to Order
	Item 2. Pledge of Allegiance
	Item 3. Roll Call
	Item 4. Approval of the October 3rd, 2023 Planning Commission Minutes
	Item 5. Public Hearing:  Walnut Street Corridor Plan
	Community Development Director Larry Kirch gave a condensed presentation of the Walnut Street Corridor Plan.  He explained, the Economic Development Committee had approved the plan with nine additional conditions.  The floor was opened for public comm...
	- Greg Fiegen, 414 Park St
	- Kortney Kistler, 418 Park St
	- Lisa Fiegen, 414 Park St
	- Angel Klankowski, 102 N Walnut St
	- Jeff Henthorne, 417 Park St
	The public hearing was closed after no further public comments or questions were presented.  The planning commission discussed the plan and asked any questions they had.  After discussion, a motion was made by Commissioner Hanifl to approve the Walnut...
	Dave Hanifl   Yes
	Chris Langen   Yes
	Ryan Stotts   Yes
	Mike Welch   Yes
	Greg Husmann  Yes
	Jerry Steffes   Yes
	and none voted against the same.  The motion was declared duly carried.
	Item 6. Public Hearing:  Active Transportation Corridor Plan for Hwy 16 to Miller’s Corner
	The Planning Commission opened the floor for comments or questions from the public in regards to the Active Transportation Corridor Plan.  There were no members of the community present in regards to the aforementioned plan.  The public hearing was cl...
	Dave Hanifl   Yes
	Mike Welch   Yes
	Chris Langen   Yes
	Greg Husmann  Yes
	Ryan Stotts   Yes
	Jerry Steffes   Yes
	and none voted against the same.  The motion was declared duly carried.
	Item 7. Discussion of various application types to be heard before the Planning Commission and the role of Staff and Planning Commission Members.
	City Attorney Skip Wieser addressed the Planning Commission in regards to the various application types that could be submitted for their review and action.  Also discussed was the roles and responsibilities of the Members of the Planning Commission.

	400 Backstretch Court Staff Report-pdf
	Submitted Variance Application- Reget
	400 Backstretch Court Variance App PP- Jeff Reget
	Slide 1: 400 Backstretch Court Variance Application
	Slide 2: Why a variance is being requested 
	Slide 3: Site Plan – Corner lot
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: House design
	Slide 6: Pros and Cons
	Slide 7: Thank you for your consideration!




